
 
  

Board Meeting Packet 
 

March 12, 2024 
 

7:00 P.M. – Regular Board Meeting 
 
 

 
1. Agenda………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….………..Page 1-2 

2. Regular Meeting Minutes…………………………………………………………………………………..………..….Page 3-5 

3. Manager’s Report…………..…….……………………………………………………….……………….……..……..Page 6-16 

4. Financials…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….Page 17-31 

5. Old Business………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..Page 32-44 

6. New Business……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………Page 45 



 

 

 
 
 

Topic: HRD Regular Board Meeting 
Time: March 12, 2024, 07:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 

Location:  Highlands Recreation Center, 1851 Lexington Ave., San Mateo, CA  94402 (Multi-Purpose Room) 
Remote Teleconference Location: 11020 Weyburn Avenue, Room 3345, Los Angeles, CA 

 
Board meetings are held in-person, with a Zoom participation option provided to the public as a courtesy. The public 

is encouraged to participate in whatever form they are most comfortable. If participating remotely via Zoom, see 
details below: 

 
 

Topic: HRD Regular Board Meeting 
Time: Mar 12, 2024 07:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85288580562?pwd=QLWjMz4MI32b73RZ4pOZt7bwUhaBlg.1 
 

Meeting ID: 852 8858 0562 
Passcode: 068657 

 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kPeuY2H5c 

 
1. Call to Order 

 

2. Review and approval of the minutes for the Regular Board Meeting on February 13, 2024. 
 

3. Public Forum: The public forum provides an opportunity for members of the public to speak on any item 
within the jurisdiction of the Board that is not on the agenda. Public comment is limited to (3) minutes per 
person. When an item is not listed on the agenda, State law prohibits Board discussion or action. Board 
Members may only “briefly respond” to statements made and questions posed. For example, State law 
allows Board Members to ask questions for clarification and provide a reference to staff or other resources 
for factual information. Additionally, the Board may also direct staff to report back and/or place a matter 
on a future agenda for discussion. 

 
4. Manager’s Report  

a. Administration  
b. Programming 

 
5. Financial Report 

a. Monthly Statement 
 

6. Old Business: 
a. Discussion: TK for All impacts and considerations for HRD 

1 of 45



 

 

 
b. Discussion/Motion: RNE-3 Benefits Classification 

 
c. Discussion: Determine additional Ad Hoc and Standing Committees of the Board 

 
d. Discussion: Ad Hoc General Manager Recruitment Committee Updates and Recommendations 

 

7. New Business: 
a. Discussion: Insurance and deposit for Highlands community rental groups 

 
 

8. Upcoming Meetings:  Apr 9 – May 14 – Jun 11 
 

9. Review and Payment of Bills 
a. Action: Motion to approve Expenditures 

 
10. HRD Board of Directors Announcements  

 
12.  Adjournment  

  
Public comments can be submitted to the District in writing prior to the meeting by emailing 
generalmanager@highlandsrec.ca.gov. Public comments will also be taken on each agenda item during the 
meeting. Written comments received by email prior to 3 pm on the day of the meeting will be forwarded to the 
Board prior to the meeting, made a part of the public record, and be available for public review at this link: 
https://highlandsrec.ca.gov/hrd-board-meetings. 

 

To comment orally in real time during the meeting, you may raise your hand if you are participating in person or 
use the Zoom “raise hand” function on your computer screen or the *9 function on your phone.  Please note 
that the District provides a Zoom participation option to the public as a courtesy in order to facilitate 
participation.  The District cannot, however, guarantee the adequacy of the audio/video quality or that meeting 
participation will be uninterrupted via Zoom.  If technical difficulties arise relating to the Zoom participation 
option, the Board meeting may continue with public attendance in person only. 

 
Board Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities. Individuals who need special assistance or disability-related 
modification or accommodation (including auxiliary aids or services) to participate in this meeting; or who have a 
disability and wish to request an alternative format for the agenda, meeting notice, agenda packet or other writings 
that may be distributed at the meeting, should contact the Board Secretary at generalmanager@highlandsrec.ca.gov. 
Notification in advance of the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting and the materials related to it. Public records that relate to any item on the open session 
agenda for a regular board meeting are available for public inspection. Those records that are distributed less than 72 
hours prior to the meeting are available for public inspection at the same time they are distributed to all members, or 
a majority of the members of the Board. The Board has designated the office of the Highlands Recreation District, 
located at 1851 Lexington Ave, for the purpose of making those public records available for inspection. The agenda, 
meeting notice, agenda packet and other writings distributed to the Board in connection with this meeting are also 
available for public review at this link: https://highlandsrec.ca.gov/hrd-board-meetings. 

 

2 of 45

mailto:admin@highlandsrec.ca.gov
https://highlandsrec.ca.gov/hrd-board-meetings
mailto:generalmanager@highlandsrec.ca.gov
https://highlandsrec.ca.gov/hrd-board-meetings


 

 

 
 
 

Topic: HRD Regular Board Meeting 
Time: February 13, 2024, 07:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 

Location:  Highlands Recreation Center, 1851 Lexington Ave., San Mateo, CA  94402 (Multi-Purpose Room) 
 

Board meetings are held in-person, with a Zoom participation option provided to the public as a courtesy. The public 
is encouraged to participate in whatever form they are most comfortable. If participating remotely via Zoom, see 

details below: 
 

Topic: HRD Regular Board Meeting 
Time: February 13, 07:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83446323386?pwd=caNlClAzt6TZSIvUa9h5Os7GgKA53Y.1 

 
Meeting ID: 834 4632 3386 

Passcode: 771620 
 

Dial by your location 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 

 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kdDI6oSYHd 

 
Board Members:    Staff: 
Andrew Aquino (Vice President)   Christopher Gurr (Interim General Manager) 
Shirin Bakhshay  - Absent   Meg Catmull (Assistant General Manager) 
Pam Merkadeau (President)   Mike Koenig (K-8 Childcare Director)  
Eric Olbekson     
Uy Ut                   
 

1. Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm by President Merkadeau.  
 
 

2. Review and Approval of Minutes  
Board Member Olbekson made a motion, Board Member Aquino second, to approve the Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes from 01/09/2024. The motion passed. 
Vote: AA - Y; SB - Absent; PM – Y; EO – Y; UU – Y 
 
Board Member Olbekson made a motion, Board Member Aquino second, to approve the Special Board Meeting 
Minutes from 01/12/2024. The motion passed. 
Vote: AA - Y; SB - Absent; PM – Y; EO – Y; UU – Abstain 
 

3 of 45

https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kdDI6oSYHd


 

 

3. Public Forum:  
Public comment was received.  

 
4. Manager’s Report  

a. Administration 
b. Programming 

 
5. Financial Report 

a. Monthly Statement 
 

6. Old Business 
a. Discussion: Update on revisions to non-profit group pricing for rental space 

 
 

b. Discussion: TK for All impacts and considerations for HRD 
 

 
c. Discussion: Feedback from EEC parents regarding program operations 

 

*For the good of the order, agenda item #6.c was moved after #5.a.* 

7. New Business 

a. Discussion: Ad Hoc General Manager Recruitment Committee Updates and Recommendations 
 
 

b. Discussion: Ad Hoc EEC Director Recruitment Committee Updates and Recommendations 
 
 

c. Discussion: Set date for Strategy Session Meeting of the Board of Directors 
 

 
d. Discussion/Motion: RNE-3 Benefits Classification 

i. No motion was made.  
 

 
e. Discussion: Determine additional Ad Hoc and Standing Committees of the Board 

i. The matter was tabled.  
 

 
f. Discussion/Motion: Hire a recruiter for the purpose of recruiting a new General Manager  

i. Board Member Olbekson made a motion, Board Member Ut second, to authorize the Interim 
General Manager to hire a recruiter for the purpose of recruiting a new General Manager.  The 
motion passed. 
Vote: AA - Y; SB - Absent; PM – Y; EO – Y; UU – Y 
 

*For the good of the order, agenda item #7.f was moved after item #7.a* 
 
 

g. Discussion/Motion: Open sweep account with SVB 
i. Board Member Aquino made a motion, Board Member Olbekson second, to approve Resolution 

2024-01 to open a sweep account with SVB with changes to Resolution 2024-01 including 

4 of 45



 

 

removing the capitalization of the word Designate and changing the 6th paragraph to read “NOW 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Highlands Recreation District Board authorizes the Interim 
General Manager…”.  The motion passed. 
Vote: AA - Y; SB - Absent; PM – Y; EO – Y; UU – Y 

 
 

2. Upcoming Meetings:  Mar 12 – Apr 9 – May 14 

 
3. Review and Payment of Bills 

a. Action: Motion to approve Expenditures 
i. Board Member Aquino made a motion, Board Member Ut second, to pay the bills. The motion 

passed. 
Vote: AA - Y; SB – Absent; PM – Y; EO – Y; UU – Y 

 
 

4. HRD Board of Directors Announcements 
 

5. Adjournment  
Board Member Olbekson made a motion, Board Member Aquino second, to adjourn the meeting. The motion 
passed unanimously.  
Vote: AA – Y; SB – Absent; PM – Y; EO – Y; UU – Y 

 
 

The Meeting adjourned at 9:21 pm. 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Meg Catmull 
Board Secretary 
 
 
Board President or Vice President:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Signature:  _____________________________________________________________________ 

5 of 45



                               MEMORANDUM 

Date: March 12, 2024 

To: HRD Board of Directors 

From: Christopher Gurr, Interim General Manager 

Re: General Manager’s Report  

Projects 
- Details included in ASP Director staff report.  

 

Human Resources 

- The Administrative Assistant left employment with the District. Efforts have begun to recruit 
a replacement.  

- A supervisor harassment training audit was completed, and all supervisors are in 
compliance.  

- A background check audit is being completed on all staff after possible discrepancies were 
found in our internal processes.  

- Onboarding tasks and checklists are being reviewed, reevaluated, and updated.  

 

Strategy Session 

- March 24th 12:00pm-4:00pm  

 

Silicon Valley Bank 

- The sweep account at SVB has been created with a daily balance set to $200,000 f0r the 
checking account. This will protect District funds held at SVB.  

 

Maintenance  

- The Maintenance Manager has begun Spring cleanup at the Rec in preparation for the 
Eggstravaganza community event.  

- The EEC Monkey room was repainted to repair and prevent chipping paint.  

6 of 45



                               MEMORANDAUM 

Date:   March 12, 2024 

To:  Chris Gurr, Interim General Manager  

From:   Mike Koenig, K-8th Child Care Director  

Re:   ASP/IC Program Update 

 

 

CURRENT PROGRAM UPDATES 

• Overall, the program is tracking as it should through 66% of budget year.  Nothing to report.                     

• The program recently conducted the first round of ASP Coordinator interviews.  The first round 
consisted of two internal candidates and three external candidates.               

• Spring Camp is about three weeks away.  Registration for Spring Camp is currently in progress 
and slowly gaining traction as we get closer. Spring Camp runs April 1-5.  The program will be 
bringing in a video game truck for the kids.    

• Summer Camp registration will begin March 11 for residents and March 18 for non-residents.    
Summer Camp will run from June 17 – August 9.    

• Program staff are currently in the process of reserving trips, special presenters, and buses for 
Summer Fun Zone 2024.  Staff have also started the process of contacting seasonal staff to 
return for another summer at HRD.  

• Program staff, Alexis Hara, celebrated her 4-year work anniversary with Highlands Recreation 
District on February 21.  Staff thanked Alexis for her service and dedication to the program. 

 
 
ADMIN OFFICE DECK & STAIRS UPDATE  

• The admin office deck and stairs project is still in limbo.  At this point, the contractor (Escon) is 
still waiting on San Mateo County to approve the permit to pour a concrete footing in the fitness 
center. Staff reached out to the building/planning department for more info.  Staff were 
informed that fees have been paid and approval by the planning department is pending.  Staff 
continue to reach out to our permit technician for updates.  Once approved, contractor will 
return to pour footing and install support beam in fitness center.  The District made its second 
payment of $17,723.14 (Dec 2023 Invoice) to Escon on 2/23/24. To date, the District has paid 
Escon $101,703.14 (95% of total project).    

 
   
 

7 of 45



LANDSLIDE UPDATE  

• The landslide below the sports court is continuing along as directed by FEMA and the districts 
appointed Cal OES representative.  Staff continue to work with Districts designated Cal OES 
representative to submit all supporting documentation.  The district is on track at this time and 
everything was up to date for the 2/29/24 submittal deadline.  The district claimed two disaster 
codes (DR-4699) and (DR-4683) with FEMA and both have a landslide listed as project within 
that code.  There is still a bit of confusion with this and it is currently being investigated by Cal 
OES and FEMA to determine why there are two slides claimed and why.  To date, staff have not 
yet heard back from the districts Cal OES rep on how to proceed.  

 
  

RISKS/OPPORTUNITIES 

• The Summer Camp is an opportunity to generate additional revenue.  Summer Camp weeks typically 
draw a bigger crowd as Fall/Winter/Spring are only one week which many families use for vacation. 

 
 
UPCOMING EVENTS 

• Spring Camp scheduling/advertising      

• Summer Camp prep/advertising  

• CPR/First Aid certification training  

• Rehiring seasonal staff 

8 of 45



                               MEMORANDUM 

Date: March 13, 2024 

To: Chris Gurr, Interim General Manager 

From:  Daniel Ryken, Aquatics Supervisor 

Re:  Aquatics Program Update 

 

 

Program Updates 

1. Lap Swim and Recreational Swimming 

• The Aquatics department is starting to see an increase in Lap Swim use over the past 

month. We expect this growth to continue as Spring begins and the weather 

improves. We will continue to evaluate attendance in order to plan for possible 

changes in program hours for the fall.  

2. Swim Lessons 

• We are currently finishing up our winter lessons and planning for Spring and 

Summer. We have developed a detailed training program for any new instructor to 

go through to ensure consistency with our swim lessons. This will be important as 

we recruit more instructors for the Summer.  

• We had to say good bye this month to two instructors, Claire Wagner and Sophie 

Wagner. While they have only been with us since last Spring, Claire and Sophie were 

really hard workers that the Aquatics Department will miss. We have hired one new 

instructor in February and looking to hire more.  

3. Swim Team 

• The swim team continues to grow, as each group has more swimmers each month. 

We are hoping that by May, the swim team will be producing $15,000 per month in 

revenue.  

 

4. New Programs 

• Our Masters adult swim work out program and our water exercise program have 

begun. While attendance for these programs is small currently, we are going to 

continue to offer these programs as we feel these programs help reach more adults. 

5. Pool Improvement Research 

• The aquatics department has contacted Jane Warden, General Manager for Ladera 

Recreation District regarding their recent pool renovation project. The project cost 

approximately 4 million dollars. The design was completed by RS and M Design and 

9 of 45



Construction. The contractor for the project was Tricon Construction. For the 

project, the pool was closed from August 15, 2022 to June 15, 2023.  

• Our next steps will be to visit the Ladera pool and see the project for ourselves. Meg 

Catmull. Highlands Assistant General Manager and Dan Ryken, Aquatics Supervisor, 

will make the trip in the month of March to get more information. We will also 

reach out to RS and M design to see if they can come out and look at what is 

possible for the Highlands pool.    

Fiscal Impacts 

• With Spring and Summer registration beginning this month, the Aquatics department 

expects to see an increase in revenue to help minimize the subsidy from the district.  

• We will be expanding private lessons this summer to weekday afternoons, which we did 

not offer last summer, to increase participation and revenue.  

Risks/Opportunities. 

• We are finalizing a possible Season Pass for the summer. The department feels this 

could drive revenue leading into the summer and encourage more summer pool use.   

Upcoming Events 

• Underwater Egg Hunt- March 23 from 12pm to 2pm 

• Lifeguarding Class April 26th, 27th and May 4th 

• Pool Closed Sunday, March 30 for Easter 

 

 

10 of 45



                               MEMORANDUM 

Date: March 12, 2024 

To: HRD Board of Directors 

From: Meg Catmull, Assistant General Manager 

Re: EEC Program Update 

Current Program Updates 

- Julie Fernandez, the new EEC Director, started employment with the District on March 5th. 
Her first day consisted of a meet & greet with parents and staff, followed by an orientation, 
then time in the classrooms. There are several projects she’ll be working on in the coming 
weeks and months including a TK program, 2024-2025 enrollment, 2024-2025 FY EEC 
budget, and hiring an EEC Assistant Director (see most recent job description attached).  

- In February, the EEC lost one floater teacher and one part time teacher, creating a vacancy 
in the Tigers classroom. After active recruiting, we were able to recruit a highly qualified 
teacher and quickly fill the vacancy that was created. Each classroom is now fully staffed 
with three full time teachers.  

- We have received notice that the EEC is eligible for a 2023-2024 Local Block Grant and/or 
Quality Improvement (QI) Grant from Quality Counts San Mateo County (QCSM), and 
Cynthia Fregoso is assisting Julie in this area.  

2023-2024 School Year Enrollment 

- At the time of this report, no families have withdrawn from the program since January.  
- One child is transitioning from the Monkeys to the Tigers room this month due to aging out 

of the infant program. The vacancy this has created in the Monkeys room will be filled with a 
child from the infant program wait list. This will bring the total number of children in the 
Tigers room to 15.  

- The Chameleon’s room had one new child start in March, bringing their total number of 
children to 15. They also have one new child scheduled to start in April.  

2024-2025 School Year Enrollment 

- Currently enrolled EEC families have been given 2024-2025 School Year enrollment 
information and documents.  

11 of 45



- Several returning families have already returned their 2024-2025 Admission Agreement and 
have paid the registration fee for the 2024-2025 School Year. Staff are monitoring the 
progress of this closely and have implemented a system for tracking the progress of re-
enrolling families.  

Upcoming Important Dates 

- 3/8 Early Closure for Staff Meeting at 4:00pm 
- 3/15 St. Patrick’s Day celebration  
- 3/22 EEC Spring Egg Hunt  
- 3/29 Professional Development Staff Day (closure for students ) 

12 of 45



A HIGHLANDS RECREATION DISTRICT • JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

ADOPTED BY THE 
GENERAL MANAGER 

April 2022 JOB TITLE 
EARLY EDUCATION ASSISTANT 

DIRECTOR 

Non-exempt 
 

 
Position Summary 
 
Under the direct supervision of the Early Education Director, the Early Education Assistant Director provides 
day-to-day administration of the Early Education Center. The Early Education Center is a childcare center 
providing group care to children from ages 3 months through age 5 and is governed by the provisions specified 
in the California State Care Regulations. 
 
Essential Functions 
 

• Demonstrate the ability and competencies to lead others in order to achieve identified outcomes in 
creating an impact, strengthening our resources, and protecting the District. 

• Increase staff capability and motivation through recruitment, development, leadership, evaluation, and 
interactive feedback. 

• Develop and monitor the budget to achieve financial goals. 
• Establish and grow meaningful relationships with parents. 
• Ensure maintenance of required children, family, and program files. 
• Ensure compliance with applicable State, welfare, and education department codes and those 

regulations adopted and administered under Title 22 Licensing and Titles V California Code of 
Regulations. 

• Prepare and submit accurate and timely reports and correspondence as required. 
• Maintain effective community relations.  
• Ensure satisfactory maintenance and appearance of the Early Education Center. 
• Set and maintain standards for children’s behavior using non-punitive methods which teach self-

discipline while supporting children’s self esteem 
• Work directly with the District staff to schedule enrichment classes and keep accurate attendance 

record. 
• Assist the promotion and scheduling of enrichment classes with the program families.  
• Attend all special events and extra activities with all other employees. 
• Perform other duties as assigned. 

 
Essential Knowledge & Abilities 
 

• Must have demonstrated administrative and supervisory experiences in a childcare program. 
• Must be flexible and able to maintain a positive and supportive working relationship with staff, parents, 

volunteers, and children. 
• Must be familiar with learning development theories and be able to plan and administer a 

comprehensive program designed to meet educational and childcare objectives. 
• Must have the ability to develop and administer budgets and maintain fiscal records. 
• Must be able to deal with confidential information in a professional manner. 
• Have knowledge of Physical Education programming which includes but is not limited to, indoor and 

outdoor activities relevant to pre-school age children. 
• Ability to organize tasks, establish systems, and delegate work and responsibility to others.  
• Ability to solve problems and take action as needed.   
• Ability to instill trust and respect from staff, children, and parents. 

13 of 45



Qualifications 
 

1. Minimum of 5 years work experience in a childcare center and previous Lead Teacher and/or Director 
experience in a preschool, early education setting. 

2. AA degree required, BA in early childhood or a related field is preferred.  
3. At least 15 college level units in early childhood development, including 3 units in infant/toddler 

development and 9 units in supervision and administration. 
 
Additional Requirements 
 

• Must possess and maintain a valid CA Driver’s license. 
• Successfully pass and physical exam. 
• Receive Department of Justice fingerprint clearance. 
• Possess and maintain certification in infant and child CPR. 

 
Physical Demands 
 
Visual and auditory ability to observe and respond to critical incidents and the physical ability to act swiftly in 
an emergency situation. Ability to lead and interact in group activities and perform related physical skills and 
the ability to stand, walk, sit, stoop, kneel or crouch. Ability to climb, push, and pull and lift and carry objects 
up to 20 pounds. 
 
Additional Information: 
 

• It may be necessary to perform other duties as assigned. 
• This position is considered to have a supervisory or disciplinary relationship over minors. 
• This job description is not intended to be all inclusive. It is understood that the employee will perform 

other duties if requested by the General Manager. Job descriptions are reviewed periodically and may 
be revised if deemed necessary. This job description is not a written or implied contract. 
 

Acknowledgement and Receipt 
 
I acknowledge that I have received, read, and sought clarification of any questions I have about the contents of 
this job description. 
 
 
____________________________        ________        ____________________________ 

 Employee Signature    Date                            Print Name 
 
 
 

____________________________              ________          ____________________________ 
 Supervisor Signature               Date                           Print Name 

 

14 of 45



 
 

  
 
 

 
MEMORANDAUM  

Date: March 5, 2024 

To: Christopher Gurr, Interim General Manager 
From: Julia Fior, Recreation Coordinator  
Re: Seasonal Programs and Rentals Update-March 2024 

 
EVENTS 

• The Highlands Senior Network had two planned events in February. On February 15, the 
HSN had their Valentine’s Day potluck. Roughly 24 people attended the potluck. Richard 
Shu did a presentation on “go- bags” and being prepared in an emergency. The HSN also 
partnered with NLYM to do a tech day where the NLYM assisted HSN members with tech 
issues they experience. 

o March’s outing will be to Harry’s Hofbrau to celebrate St. Patrick’s Day. The Rec will make 

vans available for transportation,  if needed. 

• Advertisement for the HRD Eggstravaganza has begun. The event is scheduled for March 23, 
2024. Tickets are currently on sale through RecEnroll. Tickets are $5 per person for Residents 
and $7 per person for Non-Residents. All door tickets will be $7 per person, regardless of 
resident status. 

o CalFire and the Petting Zoo have been booked. Easter eggs were delivered last week; 
finer details will be finalized in the upcoming week and communicated to staff.  

CLASSES 

• Registration for the “Highlands Theater” program opened on February 1. There are 47 students 
registered for the program. This year’s play is “Willy Wonka Jr.” to gain more interest from 
students. Shows for the program will be in late April, and the Rec will make tickets available for 
pre-sale in early April. 

• Session 2 for Winter Classes began on February 26. Popular classes for session two include Piano 
Lessons, Highlands Hoops Basketball, Tots Ukulele, and other classes. 

o The addition of the Highlands Theater program caused lower class numbers due to 
practice being 4 days a week after school. 

• The Spring and Summer Activity Guide was sent out digitally last Friday when the eNews was 
sent out. The Guide was sent to the printers and should be mailed out soon. 

o Recurring classes like Kuk Sool, Tennis Lessons, and Ukulele will continue to be offered. 
o Classes like Pre-K Gymnastics, and a Pre-K Music Exploration have been brought back. 
o New classes include Toddler Sensory Classes, Youth Cooking classes, and an Adult Pop 

Pilates class are being offered. 

• Summer Camps bring a mix of full-day options and half-day options to see if that will push for 
higher enrollment numbers. 

15 of 45



• Registration for both Spring and Summer classes opens March 11 for Residents and March 18 
for Non-Residents. 

 
RENTALS 

• January had 16 Rentals, including: 
o 7 Scout Rentals 
o 2 Dance Class Rentals 
o 3 Private Facility Rentals 
o 4 Scuba Pool Rentals 

• February numbers currently sit at 30 scheduled rentals due to a recurring renter beginning in 
March and running through late April. 

16 of 45



17 of 45



18 of 45



19 of 45



20 of 45



21 of 45



22 of 45



23 of 45



24 of 45



25 of 45



26 of 45



27 of 45



28 of 45



29 of 45



30 of 45



31 of 45



                               MEMORANDUM 

Date: March 12, 2024 

To: HRD Board of Directors 

From: Meg Catmull, Assistant General Manager 

Re: Updates on TK for All   

 

Background 

EXPANSION OF UNIVERSAL TK IN CALIFORNIA, ASSEMBLY BILL (AB) 130 

• From the 2014–15 school year to the 2021–22 school year, inclusive, a child who will have 
their fifth birthday between September 2 and December 2 shall be admitted to a 
transitional kindergarten program maintained by the school district or charter school. 

• In the 2022–23 school year, a child who will have their fifth birthday between September 2 
and February 2 shall be admitted to a transitional kindergarten program maintained by the 
school district or charter school. 

• In the 2023–24 school year, a child who will have their fifth birthday between September 2 
and April 2 shall be admitted to a transitional kindergarten program maintained by the 
school district or charter school. 

• In the 2024–25 school year, a child who will have their fifth birthday between September 2 
and June 2 shall be admitted to a transitional kindergarten program maintained by the 
school district or charter school. 

• In the 2025–26 school year, and in each school year thereafter, a child who will have their 
fourth birthday by September 1 shall be admitted to a transitional kindergarten program 
maintained by the school district or charter school. 

This is creating a need in the Highlands community for after-TK childcare.  

Plan 

Following the discussion from the February board meeting, staff has further evaluated the options 
that were proposed to meet the need for TK childcare in the Highlands.  

Several of the options proposed at the February 2024 Board Meeting are still viable, however the 
half day TK program at EEC appears to be the most well-suited to meet the current needs. To touch 
on those options again; the Annex is an affordable and local option for families in the Highlands, 

32 of 45



ASP is able to accommodate children in their program once the child turns 5, and converting the 
fitness center to an after-TK classroom could still be accomplished if the demand for after-TK care 
was such that it warranted having a dedicated program of that scale.  

Half-Day Care at EEC 

The following plan is pending, following discussion with the Board and discussion with the 
incoming EEC Director.  

Capacity for this program would be determined on a year-by-year basis depending on demand for 
the program, the waitlist, and enrollment for the upcoming school year.  

This plan would require no major changes to existing facilities. Pricing for the half day TK program at 
the EEC would be determined based on an evaluation of the total costs required to run such a 
program including administrative costs, materials costs, staffing costs, etc. Enrollment for this 
program would occur after the enrollment for the full day program and would be open to re-
enrolling EEC families first, then to waitlist families.  

 

33 of 45



                               MEMORANDUM 

Date:   March 12, 2024 

To:   HRD Board of Directors 

From:  Meg Catmull, Assistant General Manager 

Re:  RNE-3 Benefits Classification  

 

Purpose 

Staff is proposing that the District have an RNE-3 classification to clarify benefits in the event that 
an employee goes over the average of 30 hours worked per week due to meeting a staffing need of 
the District.  

Proposed Benefits for RNE-III 

Medical, Dental, Vision, LTD, STD, FSA, Accidental Death & Disability, and Life Insurance would be 
offered to RNE-3 employees at the same rate as RNE-2. Simple-IRA would be offered per the 
employee handbook with no District match or contribution.  

RNE-3 employees would not accrue or be eligible for floating holidays, holidays, winter closure pay, 
or vacation pay. Sick pay would accrue at the California state required minimum rate.  

Eligibility 

RNE-3 is not a new job classification. Roles that repeatedly require full time hours may be 
evaluated on an annual basis during budget preparations. Employees would be offered benefits to 
start the first of the month following the date that their average hours per week surpass 30.  

The 30+ hour workweek will only be granted to employees if it is in alignment with District needs. 
Should the employee’s average drop below 30 hours per workweek, the employee would be termed 
from benefits.  

Current State 

There have been 6 employees whose positions are classified as part-time but who have worked an 
average of more than 30 hours per week. The table below reflects their current elections and 
benefits.  

34 of 45



The plan for these employees, effective July 1, 2024, would be to follow the RNE-3 policy and/or 
reclassify their position to fulltime depending on the department, District needs, and the 
employee. Should these employees be granted RNE-3 classification on an ongoing basis, they 
would be expected to maintain an average minimum of 35 hours worked per week within the 
District performing meaningful work and meeting an immediate District need.  

The After School Program will be directed to limit the number of ongoing RNE-3 employees to a 
maximum of two, effective July 1st. The recommendation of management is for the Board of 
Directors to consider reclassifying the bookkeeper position to RNE-1 fulltime benefits eligible at a 
future Board Meeting. Management is recommending that the Swim Team Coach be granted RNE-3 
classification on an ongoing basis, with the requirement to work an average minimum of 35 hours 
worked per week. Employee 1, per the chart below, has been termed from benefits effective 
1/31/2024. However, due to their work as a private swim instructor, their hours may be increasing 
to meet an immediate staffing need of the District, granting them RNE-3 benefits.  

Annual Cost of HRD 30+ Hr/Wk Part Time Classified Employee Benefits  
Employee 1 Employee 2 Employee 3 Employee 4 Employee 5 Employee 6 

Department Pool ASP ASP Other ASP Pool 

Date Benefits 
Eligibility 
Changed 

Benefits 
Termed 1/31/24 

5/17/2017 8/18/2021 10/1/2023 8/18/2021 6/2/2023 

Medical    $                -     $   5,851.92   $ 14,700.72   $    6,489.84   $    6,489.84  

Dental    $                -     $                -     $        684.24   $        684.24   $        684.24  

Vision    $                -     $         72.48   $          72.48   $          72.48   $                 -    

Life     $         54.00   $         54.00   $          54.00   $          54.00   $          54.00  

A D & D     $         21.60   $         21.60   $          21.60   $          21.60   $          21.60  

STD    $      306.96   $      271.56   $        372.00   $        227.28   $        306.96  

LTD    $      151.44   $      133.92   $        183.48   $        112.08   $        151.44  

IRA    $   1,216.00   $                -     $    2,355.60   $        982.80   $    1,521.00  

CalPERS 457    $      520.00   $      520.00   $        520.00   $        520.00   $        520.00  

Floating Holidays    $      416.00   $                -     $        604.00   $                 -     $                 -    

Holidays    $   1,872.00   $                -     $    3,624.00   $                 -     $                 -    

Winter Closure    $      468.00   $      414.00   $        906.00   $        396.00   $        585.00  

Vacation    $   3,123.12   $   2,206.62   $    2,973.95   $    2,110.68   $    2,560.35  

Total    $   7,997.68   $   9,412.18   $ 26,888.59   $ 11,558.92   $ 12,742.99  
 

 

35 of 45



   HIGHLANDS RECREATION DISTRICT • JOB DESCRIPTION 

 

ADOPTED BY THE 

GENERAL MANAGER 

January  

2019 

JOB TITLE 

AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAM  

HEAD TEACHER 

NON- EXEMPT 

 

 

Position Summary 

 

Under the direct supervision of the Child Care Director.  Supervise and/or facilitate curriculum activities or 

areas to provide positive learning experiences for school-age through age 17. 

 

Essential Functions 

 

• Supervise ASP staff members to create a harmonious and efficient working environment. 

• Interfaces in a positive manner with parents to keep them informed, answer questions and address 

concerns. Refers questions and concerns to the Child care Director and or Coordinator as appropriate. 

• Maintains inventory of program supplies, food, equipment and other necessary materials by ordering 

and/or purchasing in a timely manner while upholding current fiscal budget guidelines. 

• Plans program curriculum for After School Program and seasonal camps. 

• Participates in planning and running staff meetings and training sessions. 

• Sets and maintains standards for children’s behavior using non-punitive methods which teach self-

discipline while supporting children’s self-esteem.    

• Provides and coordinates careful/concentrated supervision of play areas to ensure children’s safety and 

learning. 

• Maintains proper staffing ratio’s based on the programs total licensed capacity. 

• Schedules/trains staff in emergency evacuation procedures.  Maintains records of said drills. 

• Attends all mandatory staff meetings/training sessions/special events and extra activities with all other 

salary employees. 

• Build relationships with program participants of varying ages. 

• Maintain positive relationships with community partners. 

• Create and Maintain cleaning schedules in accordance with licensing guidelines. 

• Monitor monthly tuition payments. 

 

 

Essential Knowledge & Abilities 

 

• Must have demonstrated experiences in a child care program. 

• Must be flexible and able to maintain a positive and supportive working relationship with staff, parents, 

volunteers, and children. 

• Must have strong communication skills. 

• Must be able to deal with confidential information in a professional manner. 

• Have knowledge of Physical Education programming which includes but is not limited to, indoor and 

outdoor activities relevant to pre-school age children. 

• Ability to organize tasks, establish systems, and delegate work and responsibility to others.  

•  Ability to solve problems and take action as needed.   

• Ability to instill trust and respect from staff, children, and parents. 

• Must Understand Recreation and Child Developmental needs of school-age children, ages five through 

seventeen. 

• Must adhere to an implement the goals and philosophy of the After-School Program. 

 

 

 

 36 of 45



 

Qualifications 

 

1. Minimum of 6 months work experience in a licensed day care center or comparable group child care 

center. 

2. High School Diploma required; Bachelor’s degree preferred. 

3. At least 12 college level units in early childhood development or child development degree completed 

at an accredited or approved college or university. 

 

Additional Requirements 

 

• Must possess and maintain a valid CA Driver’s license. 

• Successfully pass a physical exam. 

• Receive Department of Justice fingerprint clearance. 

• Possess and maintain certification in infant and child CPR. 
 

Physical Demands 

 

Visual and auditory ability to observe and respond to critical incidents and the physical ability to act swiftly in 

an emergency situation. Ability to lead and interact in group activities and perform related physical skills and 

the ability to stand, walk, sit, stoop, knell or crouch. Ability to climb, push, and pull and lift and carry objects 

up to 20 pounds. 

 

Additional Information: 

 

• It may be necessary to perform other duties as assigned. 

• This position is considered to have a supervisory or disciplinary relationship over minors. 

• This job description is not intended to be all inclusive. It is understood that the employee will perform 

other duties if requested by the Child Care Director. Job descriptions are reviewed periodically and 

may be revised if deemed necessary. This job description is not a written or implied contract. 

 

Acknowledgement and Receipt 

 

I acknowledge that I have received, read, and sought clarification of any questions I have about the contents of 

this job description. 

 

 
____________________________        ________        ____________________________ 

 Employee Signature    Date                            Print Name 

____________________________              ________          ____________________________ 

 Supervisor Signature               Date                           Print Name 

 

 

37 of 45



HIGHLANDS RECREATION DISTRICT • JOB DESCRIPTION 

 

ADOPTED BY THE 

GENERAL MANAGER 

MARCH 2023 JOB TITLE 

(PT) BOOKKEEPER 

NON-EXEMPT 

 

 

Definition  

 

Under the direct supervision of the Assistant General Manager, the Bookkeeper is responsible for maintaining the 

Highlands Recreation District’s financial matters. 

 

Distinguishing Characteristics  

 

Performs independently using good judgement with minimal supervision. Also receives direction from the General 

Manager and works with other office staff, San Mateo County Controller’s office staff, and contracted auditors. Must be 

accurate, honest, and reliable in bookkeeping. 

 

Typical Duties  

 

Process payroll every two weeks; computer input of financial registration information; prepare and make bank deposits, 

& reconcile bank statements; prepare clear and concise financial reports and other related materials for the District Board 

meetings; prepare EDD Quarterly Wage and Withholding Report and Annual Reconciliation Statement; prepare 1099 tax 

forms; prepare for annual audit; prepare class/program cost breakdown report quarterly; prepare necessary journal 

entries; prepare requisitions for bond interest/principal payments, as required; reconcile to monthly county reports; 

prepare employee hiring and discharge paperwork; and perform additional duties as assigned.  

 

Desired Qualifications  

 

Knowledge of: Governmental/Non-profit accounting, Spreadsheet software, QuickBooks, and Public Relations. 

 

Ability to: Work independently, be flexible, and meet established deadlines. 

 

Experience: Two years working in accounting field. 

 

Education: Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting. 

 

Additional Requirement: Possession of a valid Class C California Driver’s License. 

 

 

38 of 45



BOOKKEEPER • JOB SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

Job specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by employees in the Job 

Descriptions.  Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 

 

DEFINITION 

 

Under the direct supervision of the Assistant General Manager, the Bookkeeper is responsible for maintaining the 

Highlands Recreation District’s financial matters. 

 

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 

 

Personnel assigned to this position must perform independently, using good judgement with minimal supervision. 

Personnel must be accurate, honest, and reliable in their bookkeeping.  

 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 

Also receives direction from the General Manager and works with other office staff, San Mateo County Controller’s 

office staff, and contracted auditors. 

 

ESSENTIAL AND MARGINAL FUNCTION STATEMENTS-Essential and other important responsibilities and 

duties may include, but are not limited to, the following 

1. Process payroll every two weeks and email to San Mateo County Controller’s office. 

2. Process pay check disbursement. 

3. Computer input of financial registration information. 

4. Prepare and make bank deposits, and reconcile bank statements. 

5. Prepare clear and concise financial reports, and other related materials for monthly District Board meetings. 

6. Prepare EDD Quarterly Wage and Withholding Report and Annual Reconciliation Statement. 

7. Prepare 1099 tax forms. 

8. Prepare for annual audit. 

9. Prepare class/program cost breakdown report quarterly. 

10. Prepare necessary journal entries. 

11. Prepare requisitions for bond interest/principal payments as required. 

12. Reconcile to monthly county reports. 

13. Prepare employee hiring and discharge paperwork. 

 

Marginal Functions 

1. Help with other office duties as needed. 

2. Assist with daily customer service as necessary. 

3. Assist with the proposed budget. 

4. Respond to facility emergencies. 

5. Complete special projects requested by the General Manager. 

6. Perform additional duties as assigned. 

 

QUALIFICATIONS 

 

Knowledge Of 

Governmental/Non-profit accounting. 

Spreadsheet software. 

Quickbooks. 

Public Relations 

 

 

 

 

39 of 45



 

 

Ability To 

Work independently. 

Be flexible. 

Meet established deadlines. 

 

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

Any combination of experience and training that would likely provide the required knowledge and abilities is 

qualifying.  A typical way to obtain the knowledge and abilities would be 

 

Experience 

Two years in the accounting field. 

 

Training 

Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting.  Knowledge of governmental/non-profit accounting. 

 

License or Certificates 

Possession of, or ability to obtain a valid California Driver’s License. 

 

WORKING CONDITIONS 

 

Environmental Conditions 

Lively office environment and some car travel. 

 

Physical Conditions 

Essential and marginal functions may require maintaining physical condition for sitting & standing for prolonged 

periods of time.  Maintain the following physical abilities: see well enough to read instructions, read fine print, view 

computer screen, operate vehicles and equipment; hear well enough to converse on the telephone and in person 

assisting customers and program participants; bodily mobility to lift and maneuver program supplies and equipment; 

use of hands and fingers for use of computer keyboard, copy machine, writing and answering telephones. 

 

 

 

40 of 45



HIGHLANDS RECREATION DISTRICT •JOB DESCRIPTION 

 

ADOPTED BY THE 

GENERAL MANAGER 

November  

2017 

JOB TITLE 

Swim Team Coach 

NON-EXEMPT 

 

 

 

Definition: 

 

Under the supervision of the Aquatics Supervisor, create a positive swim team setting; teach the fundamentals of 

competitive swimming in a positive environment and provide instruction and guidance during training sessions. 

 

Distinguishing Characteristics:  

 

The Swim Team coach is responsible for directing all aspects of swim team development including teaching and 

supervising students of all ages and abilities within the swim team program.  All positions allocated to this class require 

that the incumbent be able to exercise judgment and initiative. 

 

Typical Duties: 

 

Plan and develop competitive swim program;  develop and communicate team vision and goals; design swim workouts; 

manage and evaluate athlete goal setting, focus on stoke technique; maintain supervision of the group at all times; plan 

and implement home swim meets; attend off site swim meets and warm-ups; plan team/community events; maintain 

consistent and positive communication with aquatics staff and swim team parents; assist with the set-up of the pool for 

training sessions including moving lane lines and setting up backstroke flags and blocks; prevent accidents through the 

enforcement of policies, rules, regulations and ordinances governing the conduct of swimmers; maintain order, anticipate 

hazardous situations and take steps to prevent them; administer first aid; use proper teaching tools, equipment and 

techniques; maintain positive , professional and tactful public relations; maintain attendance records and logs; perform 

related duties as assigned. 

 

 

 

Desired Qualifications:  

 

Knowledge of: Prior swim team coaching experience and competitive swim experience required. A bachelors degree in 

physical education, recreation, or a related field is desirable. Knowledge of USS Swimming rules and local swim 

conference rules and regulations. Certification in Safety Training for Swim Coaches or equivalent is required. Possess or 

have the ability to obtain ASCA level I certification. CPR and First Aid training required. Current and Valid California 

drivers license required. 

 

Ability to: Perform manual labor as needed to coach of all sizes and perform rescues; perform First Aid and CPR; remain 

calm and efficient in stressful situations and emergencies. 

 

Experience: Previous experience as a  Swim Team Coach is desirable. 

 

Education: Equivalent to the completion of high school; additional schooling is desirable. 

 

Additional Requirement: Current Safety training for swim coaches or Lifeguard Training, CPR, First Aid and ASCA 

level I certifications. Registered as USA Swimming coach. Possession of or ability to obtain and appropriate, valid 

California Driver’s License.  

 

41 of 45



SWIM TEAM COACH• JOB SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

Job specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by employees in the Job 

Descriptions.  Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 

 

DEFINITION 

 

Under the supervision of the Recreation Supervisor, Aquatics, to coach the swim team and perform related work as 

required. 

 

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 

 

Swim Coach is required to teach and supervise students of all ages.  All positions allocated to this class require that the 

incumbent be able to exercise judgment and initiative. 

 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 

Receives direction from the Recreation Supervisor, Aquatics. 

Exercises supervision over swim team participants. 

 

ESSENTIAL AND MARGINAL FUNCTION STATEMENTS-Essential and other important responsibilities and 

duties may be included, but are not limited to the following: 

 

1. Attend all scheduled swim meets. Supervise all swimmers. Coordinate volunteers. Create 

and post all meet line-ups and information. 

2. Coordinate practice group scheduling and assign athletes to appropriate training groups. 

3. Coordinate and attend all swim practices. 

4. Attend all swim conference meetings. 

5. Attend all registration and parent meetings. 

6. Coordinate and attend all swim team special events and fund-raisers. 

7. Conduct stroke clinics. 

8. Directly supervise all assistant coaches. 

9. Actively coach swimmers in competitive stroke training to improve stroke technique and 

improve swimmers competitive swim times. 

10. Recruit new swimmers to program. 

11. Demonstrate exceptional customer service skills in all communications. 

12. Perform any duties as assigned by the Recreation Supervisor, Aquatics. 

13. Work with Recreation Supervisor, Aquatics with swim team brochure development and swim 

team budget. 

14. Offer swim team athletes swim incentives at practice and reward performance at meets. 

15. Have basic computer skills in Microsoft word, excel. 

16. Meet all safety and operational requirements in the facility. 

17. Develop strong teambuilding qualities through demonstrated leadership. 

 

Marginal Functions: 

1. Maintain good communication with parents of swimmers through discussions, newsletters, 

emails, flyers etc. 

3. Maintain appropriate records of all swim team meets and results. 

4. Maintain appropriate records of all swim team members times and records 

5. Make sure all swim team equipment is in good working order. 

 

 

 

 

42 of 45



DESIRED QUALIFICATIONS 

 

Knowledge of: 

 

ASCA Level I 

CPR and First Aid 

Safety Training for Swim Coaches or Lifeguard Training 

Instructional methodology. 

Child psychology. 

Pool rules and practices. 

 

Ability to: 

 

Perform manual labor as needed to instruct students of all sizes and perform rescues. 

Perform First Aid and CPR. 

Remain calm and efficient in stressful situations and emergencies. 

Work with students with special needs. 

 

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

Any combination of experience and training that would likely provide the required knowledge and abilities is 

qualifying.  A typical way to obtain the knowledge and abilities would be: 

 

Experience: 

 

Previous experience as a Swim Coach is desirable. 

 

Training: 

 

Equivalent to the completion of high school; additional schooling is desirable. 

 

License Or Certificates 

 

Current CPR and First Aid. 

ASCA Level I 

Safety Training for Swim Coaches or Lifeguard Training 

 

WORKING CONDITIONS 

 

Environmental Conditions: 

 

Outdoor and indoor (domed) swimming pool environment; exposure to potentially hazardous chemicals, heat, cold, 

sun, and inclement weather conditions; and work around slippery surfaces. 

 
Physical Conditions: 

 
Maintain the following physical abilities: see well enough to read instructions, read fine print, view computer screens, recognize 

hazardous situations, operate vehicles and equipment; hear well enough to converse on the telephone, on the radio and in person 

assisting customers and program participants; bodily mobility to lift and maneuver supplies and equipment up  to 20 pounds; use 

of hands and fingers for use of computer keyboard, copy machine, filing, writing, drive equipment and answering phones; tolerate 

extreme fluctuations in temperature while performing essential functions and able to lift equipment as necessary; tolerate 

exposure to water and sunlight for prolonged periods of time. 

 

 

43 of 45



                               MEMORANDUM 

Date:   March 12, 2024 

To:   HRD Board of Directors 

From:  Ad Hoc General Manager Recruitment Committee 

Re:  Recruiting Update   

The committee would like to provide an update to the status of the General Manager search process 
and seeks the Board’s advice on next steps in the candidate interview process. 

 
Search Update: 

The Ad Hoc General Manager Recruitment Committee has engaged with a recruiting professional with 
experience recruiting for government parks and recreation positions for the City of San Jose.  The 
Committee and Interim General Manager have discussed compensation with the individual and are 
working on a Recruitment Engagement Agreement although the individual has already begun working 
on the recruitment process.  The position has been reposted online with an updated resume review 
period of March 31, 2024. 

Recommended Next Steps: 

The Committee will contact initial applicants to inform them of the new resume review date and will 
also work with the IGM and counsel to finalize the Recruitment Engagement Agreement.  The position 
will be posted through various social media outlets to notify the Highlands community and other 
potential referring parties or candidates about the position. 

The recruiter and Committee will screen resumes and identify candidates that meet the GM job 
qualifications with the plan to conduct initial interviews via Zoom the week of April 8th.  From there the 
Committee anticipates recommending candidates to the next stage in the interview process which 
would be a 4-5 member panel of Highlands’s community members.  Depending on where the candidates 
reside, the interviews may be virtual or in person.  The goal would be for the panel interviews to take 
place the week April 22nd or April 29th.  If Board Members would like to nominate community members 
to sit on the interview panel, please provide those names to the March 12th meeting or they can be 
submitted to GMDirect@highlandsrec.ca.goc. 
Based on feedback from the interview panel, the Committee will recommend moving forward 
candidates for in-person interviews with the Board of Directors at the May 14th Regular Board Meeting 
or sooner.  The District will potentially need to facilitate travel and lodging for out of state candidates. 

44 of 45

mailto:GMDirect@highlandsrec.ca.goc


                               MEMORANDUM 

Date:   March 12, 2024 

To:   HRD Board of Directors 

From:  Meg Catmull, Assistant General Manager 

Re: Community Group Rental Insurance 

 

Background 

Two Highlands Community groups, Highlands CERT and the Highlands Senior Network (HSN), have 
expressed concern over the deposit and insurance requirements of the Highlands Community 
Group Rental Policy (below). Until now, CERT and HSN have not been required to provide insurance 
or a deposit for their regular rentals and events. This requirement could pose a hardship for these 
groups as they are not legally recognized entities.  

The insurer for Highlands Recreation District is CAPRI. CAPRI has advised staff that it is at the 
discretion of the District as to whether we would like to waive the additional insurance 
requirements for these rentals. However, CAPRI also cautioned the District to consider the 
possible liabilities and risks that this could create for the District.  

Staff is asking the HRD Board of Directors for direction on whether to waive or require additional 
insurance and a deposit for these groups.  

Highlands Community Group Rental Policy 

In support of the Highlands Community, we offer free rentals to Highlands based non-
profit/community groups. The definition of a Highlands based non-profit/community group is a 
group whose roster is comprised of a minimum of either 50%, or 5 overall current Highlands 
residents.  
These groups will be required to present proof of the aforementioned residency status and will also 
be required to provide a deposit and insurance policy for the duration of the rental season. These 
groups will also be required to present proof of their non-profit status, and/or the community 
impact and public availability of the group. All other pertinent clauses in the rental agreement do 
apply to groups that qualify for free rentals. Free rentals will be subject to availability. Paid rentals 
and District programs will be given priority over free rentals.  
Eligibility exceptions to these requirements will be made solely at the discretion of the General 
Manager for the rental season, and will be based on facility availability, roster residency status, and 
the community impact of the group. 

45 of 45


	TOC Board Meeting Packet 20240312
	1_20240312 Draft Meeting Agenda
	2_20240213_Draft_Meeting_Minutes
	5.1_20240312 GM Report
	5.2_20240312 ASP Report
	5.3_20240312 Aquatics Report
	5.4_20240312 EEC Report
	5.4.a_EEC Assistant Director JD 2022 Final
	JOB TITLE
	EARLY EDUCATION ASSISTANT

	5.5_20240312 Rec Coordinator Report
	6_20240312 Financials
	7.1_20240312 TK for all Memo
	7.2_20240312 RNE-3 Memo
	7.2.a_ASP Head Teacher Job Description
	7.2.b_Bookkeeper Job Description 2023
	7.2.c_swim coach job description 2017
	7.3_20240312 Ad Hoc GM Recruitment Committee Update
	8.1_20230312 Community Group Rental Insurance Memo



